
MEASURE  K
CITIZENS’ BOND OVERSIGHT  

COMMITTEE  
Ontario-Montclair School District

March 1, 2021
5:00 PM

Via Zoom

AGENDA
I. Opening:     

A. Roll Call
II I . Welcome

I I I . E l e c t i o n  o f  O f f i c e r s  a n d  Te r m s :
A. Chair
B. Vice Chair

IV. March 4, 2020 Meeting Minutes
IV. Presentations and Reports:

A. 2020-2021 Measure “K” Cit izens’ Bond Oversight Committee Project 
Update-Craig Misso

B. June 30, 2020 Financial and Performance Audits – Bui lding Fund 
(Measure K); Prepared by EideBail ly, CPAs & Business Advisors -
Vanessa Eastland

C. Measure K Project Expenditure and Encumbrance Report - Vanessa 
Eastland

V. Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee Annual Report:  Approval
A. 2020-21 Measure K Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee Annual Report

VI. Public Participation:
VII. Member Comments:

VIII. Next Meeting:
IX. Adjournment



MEASURE “K”
CITIZENS’ BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE (CBOC)

Ontario-Montclair School District

February 1, 2018 Meeting Minutes
February 20, 2019 Meeting Minutes

March 4, 2020 Meeting Minutes 



Term Expiration:
   Current Third Term
Apr 2021        Apr 2023
Apr 2020        Apr 2024
Apr 2021        Apr 2023
Apr 2021        Apr 2023
Apr 2020        Apr 2024
Apr 2020        Apr 2022
Apr 2021        Apr 2023

Members
Bertha Diaz (Parent Member)
Judith Jasper (Senior Cit izen’s Organizat ion Member)
Crisol Mena (Parent Active in a PTA Member)            
Michael Milhiser (At-Large Member)
Christine Pangelinan (At-Large Member) 
Sergio Sahagun (Community Business Owner Member)
Cindi Aguirre (Taxpayers Associate Member)              

 

MEETING MINUTES

INITIAL MEETING
March 4, 2020

Central Language Academy

I. Introductions/Welcome: At 5:00 PM the meeting was called to order.  

Members present: Bertha Diaz, Christine Pangelinan, Cindi Aguirre, Crisol Mena, Judy Jasper
Members absent: Michael Milhiser, Sergio Sahagun
OMSD staff present: Craig Misso, Justin Spencer, Mirna Lodge, Olivia Ramos (interpreter), Twila 
Van Ramshorst, Vanes sa  Eas t l and .
Others present: None.

II. Election of Officers and Terms:  Nominations were opened for Chair and Vice Chair.  Crisol Mena 
nominated Cindi Aguirre as Chair, Judy Jasper seconded. Bertha Diaz nominated herself as Vice Chair
and seconded by Christine Pangelinan. The motions passed 5-0.

III. Approval of Meeting Minutes:  Meeting minutes for the February 20, 2019 CBOC meeting were
reviewed by the members present. Crisol Mena made a motion to approve the minutes and Bertha 
Diaz seconded. The motion passed 5–0.

IV. Presentation:
A. Measure K General Obligation Bond Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee Report. Craig 

Misso presented on the status of Measure K projects completed, in progress and planned 
under the Measure K bond issue.  Projects noted were, perimeter fencing, drinking fountain 
replacement or upgrade, bottle fillers, security system/CCTV camera upgrades, completion of 
two Wellness, Arts & Technology Centers and seismic retrofitting of four schools, new paint 
and carpet in every classroom at Central Language Academy and Euclid Elementary School, 
upgraded lighting district-wide and at no cost to the district thanks to a program from 

MEASURE “K”
CITIZENS’ BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE (CBOC)

Ontario-Montclair School District



Southern California Edison, planned seismic project at Vina Danks and Wellness, Arts & 
Technology Centers at two middle schools and parking lot expansion at Central Language 
Academy. Bertha Diaz inquired about the timeline for Vina Danks’ Wellness, Arts & Technology 
Center and whether the district can request additional funds.  Craig explained that the district 
is currently in-line to receive some funding from the State, which is released at specific 
timelines.  Christine Pangelinan asked what happens to money left over, and whether it can 
go back to taxpayers. Craig Misso responded that State reimbursements are able to be 
returned to the program to fund additional eligible Measure K projects.

B. Building Fund (Measure K) Financial & Performance Audit.  Prepared by EideBailly, CPAs & 
Business Advisors). Vanessa Eastland presented on the financial and performance audit
report.   

C. 2019-20 Measure K Project Expenditure & Encumbrance Report.
Vanessa Eastland presented on the expenditures and encumbrances made from inception 
to June 30, 2019.  

D. 2019-20 CBOC Annual Report.
Craig Misso presented the 2019-20 CBOC Annual Report.

V. Public Participation: No community members other than Citizens’ Bond                 
Oversight Committee (CBOC) members were present.

VI.     Approval of Annual Report:
CBOC members present reviewed the 2019-20 CBOC Annual Report. Cindi Aguirre made a
motion to approve the annual report and Christine Pangelinan seconded. The motion passed 5-0.

VII. Members Comments: Criso Mena also inquired whether the dais in Central’s auditorium was 
permanent, Craig Misso explained that it is. Christine Pangelinan commented on her amazement of 
the projects that have been completed under the Measure K Bond and the management of the 
projects and funds, she liked the pie chart portion of the fiscal presentation because it shows where 
the money is going.  Cindi Aguirre also commented on how well managed the project expenditures 
are.  She further commented on the emphasis on safety during the various projects, such as 
plumbing, fencing and seismic retrofits; she congratulated Craig Misso, Justin Spencer and Vanessa 
Eastland on their work. 

VIII. Future Meetings:  To be Determined.

IX. Adjournment: Bertha Diaz motioned to adjourn the meeting and Judy Jasper seconded. The 
motion passed 5–0. The meeting adjourned at 5:51 PM.



MEASURE “K”
CITIZENS’ BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE (CBOC)

Ontario-Montclair School District

Measure K General Obligation Bond Citizens’
Bond Oversight Committee Report



2020-2021 Measure K General 
Obligation Bond Citizens’ Bond 
Oversight Committee Report

Committee Members

Cindi Aguirre ~ Bertha Diaz ~ Judith Jasper ~ Crisol Mena ~ Michael Milhiser ~ Christine Pangelinan ~ Sergio Sahagun

March 1, 2021

1



Measure K – Background
On November 8, 2016, the voters of the Ontario-Montclair School District (“District”) authorized a
$150 million general Obligation Bond (Measure K Bond) under the Proposition 39 statutes. The first
issuance of the Bond proceeds (“Series A”) were sold in March 2017 in the amount of $35 million.
On February 7, 2019, the second issuance (“Series B”) was authorized in the amount of $45 million.
Projects planned with these proceeds include:

• Aging Facilities, Infrastructure, and Code Compliance
• School Safety and Security
• Physical Fitness
• Technology
• Other Improvements

Examples of projects being considered under the Measure K Bond proceeds include the
renovation/repair of aging classrooms, plumbing, gas lines, asbestos/lead paint abatement, code
compliance, school security, fire safety, increase water conservation/energy efficiency, improve
technology/computer/science labs, construct, acquire/retrofit school facilities, sites/equipment,
including physical education facilities, gyms, lockers, bleachers, multipurpose rooms used for after-
school programs, assemblies, sports, performing arts and serving meals, construct, upgrade,
reconfigure parking lots and drop off/pick up zones, and temporary housing of displaced District
activities caused by bond projects. This report provides a status on projects completed, under
construction, and under design.

MEASURE K

2



Measure K – Background
Background – Measure K (cont.)

Measure K General Obligation Bond approved by voters November 8, 2016
o Passed at 78% approval level
o Highest approval rating of any school bond in San Bernardino County
o Maximum $150 million bond authorization
Issuances
o March 2017 – Issued Series A in the amount of $35 million
o March 2019 – Issued Series B in the amount of $45 million
o Future issuance dates to be determined

Cost of construction
Cash flow timing
Assessed valuation

3



Measure K – Accountability Measures
Independent Audits
o Two separate independent audits – Financial and Performance – are required
o Completed audits posted to OMSD website for years ending June 30, 2018, 2019 & 2020
Citizens Bond Oversight Committee (CBOC)
o Created with the authority to review expenditures of bond proceeds to determine they 

were spent for authorized purposes
o Consists of seven members representing different segments of the community and cannot 

include District employees
o Since first issuance of bonds (March 2017), three meetings have been conducted and 

agendas/minutes/attachments are on the OMSD web site

Measure K – Accountability
4



Completed Projects

Bon View Elementary School 

Fire Alarm Upgrades
Bon View Elementary School
Replacement of the fire alarm system became necessary to ensure a safe environment remained for
students and staff. To meet code compliance requirements a complete system, including replacement
cabling, devices and communication panel was required. The project commenced and was completed
during the summer of 2017.

5



Completed Projects
Water/Gas Line Replacement Projects

Haynes Elementary School (Phases I & II) water line replacement
Howard Elementary School water & gas line replacement
These infrastructure replacement projects involved the replacement of the water lines
serving the administration, and classroom buildings and Multipurpose (MPR) at Haynes ES
and water and gas lines at Howard ES. Work commenced and was competed over the
summer of 2017.

Howard ES Haynes ES

6



Completed Projects

Mission Elementary School 

Office Entrance 
Modifications

Mission Elementary 
School
For improved site security, the
school’s office entrance was
relocated to provide access
directly from the parking lot,
rather than through the school’s
breezeway. Additional security
fencing was added to ensure
visitors enter the office before
gaining entry into the school.
The project was completed in
Summer of 2018.

7



Completed Projects

Central Language 
Academy
For improved site security,
the school’s office entrance
was modified to provide a
interior access doors. The
project was completed in
summer of 2019.

Office Entrance Modifications

8



Completed Projects

Euclid Elementary School
For improved site security, the
school’s office entrance was
modified to provide a interior
access doors. The project was
completed in 2019.

Office Entrance Modifications

9



Completed Projects

Euclid Elementary School

Drinking Fountain Upgrades
This project involves the upgrade/replacement of existing drinking 
fountains Districtwide.  Completed in fall of 2018.istrictwide. Based 
on age and accessibility code compliance requirements 
either the entire fountain or its aged components were 
replaced at all 32 District schools.  

El Camino Elementary School

10



Perimeter Fencing Upgrades at 33 Sites
This project involves the replacement of existing perimeter fencing at all schools and
Linda Vista with 8’ high fencing with tighter chain link fabric to make climbing more
difficult. Black vinyl versus galvanized materials have been used for longer life and
improved esthetics.

Completed Projects

Euclid 
Elementary 

School

Monte Vista 
Elementary 

School

Vista 
Grande 

Elementary 
School

Del Norte 
Elementary 

School

11



Security Camera Upgrades at Middle Schools
This project involved upgrading the closed circuit television (CCTV) security 
systems at the District’s six middle schools.  Improved campus monitoring and 
visibility was achieved by increasing the number of cameras locations and 
utilizing state-of-the-art camera technology.  Project was completed in 
October 2018.

De Anza
Oaks
Serrano
Vernon
Vina Danks
Wiltsey

Completed Projects

Security Camera Dashboard

12



Wellness, Arts & Technology Centers
De Anza Middle School (October 2019)
21st Century Learning Environment
o Regulation-size basketball & volleyball courts
o Practice courts
o Performing Arts Stage
o Maker Space 
o Multimedia Lab 

Completed Projects 13



Wellness, Arts & Technology Centers
Vernon Middle School (August 2019)
21 Century Learning Environment
o Regulation-size basketball & volleyball courts
o Practice courts
o Performing Arts Stage
o Maker Space 
o Multimedia Lab 

Completed Projects 14



Modernization/Seismic Upgrade
Central
o Seismic Retrofitting
o Roof Replacement
o Carpet Replacement
o Ceiling replacement
o HVAC Upgrades
o Interior & Exterior Painting
o Tackwall Upgrade
o Office Workstation Upgrades
o Water and Gas Lines
o Security Entrance Modifications

Completed Projects 15



Modernization/Seismic Upgrade
Euclid
o Seismic Retrofitting
o Roof Replacement
o Carpet Replacement
o Ceiling replacement
o HVAC Upgrades
o Interior Painting and Tackwall Upgrade
o Office Workstation Upgrades
o Water and Gas Lines
o Security Entrance Modifications
o ADA Accessibility Upgrades

Completed Projects 16



Modernization/Seismic Upgrade Projects (continued)
Serrano (MPR & Bldg. C)
o ADA Accessibility Upgrades
o Seismic Retrofitting
o Roof Replacement
Wiltsey (MPR & Bldg. G)
o ADA Accessibility Upgrades
o Seismic Retrofitting
o Roof Replacement

Completed Projects 17



Parking Lot Expansion/Site Restoration Projects

Completed Projects

Euclid Elementary School

Playground Restoration

Central Language Academy 

Parking Lot Expanasion

18



Projects Under Construction
Wellness,  Arts & Technology Centers 
Construction of five middle school Wellness, Arts & Technology Centers is
planned in support of the District’s goal to ensure our students have equal access
to competitive 21st Century learning. Two of these facilities are under
construction using Series A Bond proceeds and scheduled for completion August
2019. The facilities will include physical education, gyms, bleachers,
multipurpose areas used for after-school programs, assemblies, sports, and
performing arts.

Serrano MS Wiltsey MS

19



Projects Under Construction
Wellness,  Arts & Technology Centers 

20



Wellness, Arts & Technology Center
Serrano
o Construction

January  2021 – December 2021

Projects Under Construction 21



Wellness, Arts & Technology Center
Wiltsey
o Construction

January 1 2021 – December 2021

Projects Under Construction 22



Vina Danks Modernization & Building Expansion
Vina Danks Bldg. ‘B’ replacement

Projects Under Design

Add renderings of Cafeteria 
Bldg.

Add rendering of Locker room 
bldg.

23



Vina Danks Modernization & Building Expansion
Vina Danks Bldg. ‘B’ replacement

Projects Under Design

Vina Danks M.S. 
Library Building

Vina Danks M.S. 
Locker Room Building

24



Vina Danks Modernization & Building Expansion
Building ‘B’ Replacement Under State’s Seismic Upgrade Program
o Projected Phasing Timeline

Design documents & funding (Spring 2022)
Interim housing placements & interior modifications (Summer 2022)
Building ‘B’ replacement (Fall 2022)
Interim housing restoration (Summer 2023
HVAC & electrical upgrade (Fall 2023)

Vina Danks Wellness, Arts & Technology Center
o Projected Phasing Timeline

Design documents & funding (Spring 2024)
Construction (Summer 2024)

Projects Under Design 25



HVAC Upgrades
Berlyn Bldg. B
Lehigh

Security
Security Cameras at Elementary Schools
Electronic Door Locks at School Admin Bldgs.

Water & Gas Line Replacement
Elderberry
Kingsley
Lehigh

Additional Projects Under Design 26



MEASURE “K”
CITIZENS’ BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE (CBOC)

Ontario-Montclair School District

Building Fund (Measure K) Financial & 
Performance Audit.  Prepared by Vavrinek, Trine, 

Day & Co., LLP

Building Fund ( Measure K) 
Financial & Performance Audit.   

Prepared by, 
EideBailly CPAs & Business 

Advisors



What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
10681 Foothill Blvd., Ste. 300  |  Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730-3831  |  T 909.466.4410  |  F 909.466.4431  |  EOE

Ontario, California







eidebailly.com





eidebailly.com



What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
10681 Foothill Blvd., Ste. 300  |  Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730-3831  |  T 909.466.4410  |  F 909.466.4431  |  EOE



















eidebailly.com



What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
10681 Foothill Blvd., Ste. 300  |  Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730-3831  |  T 909.466.4410  |  F 909.466.4431  |  EOE









eidebailly.com



What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
10681 Foothill Blvd., Ste. 300  |  Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730-3831  |  T 909.466.4410  |  F 909.466.4431  |  EOE













MEASURE “K”
CITIZENS’ BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE (CBOC)

Ontario-Montclair School District

Measure K Project 
Expenditure and Encumbrance Report



Measure K

Citizen Bond
Oversight Committee

Fiscal Presentation
March 1, 2021

Data as of January 31, 2021



Measure K Audit
• Audit as of June 30, 2020
• Audit Purpose:

• Form an opinion on financial statements
• Performance audit to verify District complied with rules and regulations

• Financial Statement:
• Unmodified opinion = Best opinion given
• No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies identified

• Performance Audit:
• Auditor’s tested 31% of total expenditures
• No expenditures that were tested were found not in compliance with the requirements Article XIIIA of 

the State Constitution or the requirements of the Measure K

• Fund Balance as of June 30, 2020 was $30,799,317
• Fund Balance is considered restricted

• Amount that can be spent only for specific purpose

• Findings:
• None



Project Activity

PROJECT EXPENDITURES-TO-DATE ENCUMBERED TOTAL

ARROYO—MODERNIZATION 301,567.74 - 301,567.74 

BERLYN—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 9,371.26 - 9,371.26 

BON VIEW—MODERNIZATION 326,454.73 - 326,454.73 

BRERLYN—MODERNIZATION 479,421.73 16,311.62 495,733.35 

BUENA VISTA—MODERNIZATION 315,508.52 10,432.11 325,940.63 

CENTRAL—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 656,792.80 - 656,792.80 

CENTRAL—MODERNIZATION 1,228,729.79 29,315.84 1,258,045.63 

CENTRAL—SEISMIC RETROFIT 6,096,542.95 12,284.95 6,108,827.90 

CORONA—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 234.56 - 234.56 

CORONA—MODERNIZATION 331,224.66 - 331,224.66 

DE ANZA—HEALTH AND LEARNING CENTER 10,533,290.22 8,343.81 10,541,634.03 

DE ANZA—MODERNIZATION 413,214.98 - 413,214.98 

DEL NORTE—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 270.89 - 270.89 

DEL NORTE—MODERNIZATION 431,895.39 33,027.24 464,922.63 

EDISON—MODERNIZATION 225,681.00 19,602.00 245,283.00 

EDISON—SEISMIC RETROFIT 1,600.00 1,600.00 3,200.00 



Project Activity

PROJECT EXPENDITURES-TO-DATE ENCUMBERED TOTAL

EL CAMINO—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 32,352.79 1,148.00 33,500.79 

EL CAMINO—MODERNIZATION 517,689.24 - 517,689.24 

ELDERBERRY—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 235.78 - 235.78 

ELDERBERRY—MODERNIZATION 352,759.99 57,000.00 409,759.99 

EUCLID—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 639,878.68 - 639,878.68 

EUCLID—MODERNIZATION 761,900.91 - 761,900.91 

EUCLID—SEISMIC RETROFIT 4,372,044.01 - 4,372,044.01 

HAWTHORNE—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 1,801.29 - 1,801.29 

HAWTHORNE—MODERNIZATION 360,172.73 16,411.73 376,584.46 

HAYNES—MODERNIZATION 425,800.81 - 425,800.81 

HOWARD—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 1,584.28 - 1,584.28 

HOWARD—MODERNIZATION 864,406.50 17,176.29 881,582.79 

KINGSLEY—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 1,594.10 - 1,594.10 

KINGSLEY—MODERNIZATION 329,717.89 - 329,717.89 

LEHIGH—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 1,287.95 - 1,287.95 

LEHIGH—MODERNIZATION 513,508.37 - 513,508.37 



Project Activity

PROJECT EXPENDITURES-TO-DATE ENCUMBERED TOTAL

LINCOLN—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 813.07 - 813.07 

LINCOLN—MODERNIZATION 272,629.13 39,816.42 312,445.55 

LINCOLN—SEISMIC RETROFIT 1,600.00 1,600.00 3,200.00 

LINDA VISTA—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 1,187.74 - 1,187.74 

LINDA VISTA—MODERNIZATION 183,736.36 25,825.31 209,561.67 

MARIPOSA—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 2,224.73 - 2,224.73 

MARIPOSA—MODERNIZATION 168,303.49 10,902.68 179,206.17 

MARIPOSA—SEISMIC RETROFIT 1,600.00 1,600.00 3,200.00 

MISSION—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 956.76 - 956.76 

MISSION—MODERNIZATION 604,842.31 29,775.97 634,618.28 

MONTE VISTA—MODERNIZATION 422,451.84 17,449.30 439,901.14 

MONTERA—MODERNIZATION 374,160.86 - 374,160.86 

MORENO—MODERNIZATION 610,642.87 - 610,642.87 

OAKS—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 643.94 - 643.94 

OAKS—MODERNIZATION 392,033.84 - 392,033.84 

RAMONA—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 4,599.48 - 4,599.48 



Project Activity

PROJECT EXPENDITURES-TO-DATE ENCUMBERED TOTAL

RAMONA—MODERNIZATION 520,343.15 - 520,343.15 

SERRANO—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 3,063.65 - 3,063.65 

SERRANO—HEALTH AND LEARNING CENTER 945,193.77 6,344,551.87 7,289,745.64 

SERRANO—MODERNIZATION 382,442.19 - 382,442.19 

SERRANO—SEISMIC RETROFIT 1,949,915.17 - 1,949,915.17 

SULTANA—MODERNIZATION 301,664.00 10,453.21 312,117.21 

VARIOUS—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 23,087.44 - 23,087.44 

VARIOUS—SEISMIC RETROFIT 640,584.75 - 640,584.75 

VERNON—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 2,632.68 - 2,632.68 

VERNON—HEALTH AND LEARNING CENTER 11,548,141.47 - 11,548,141.47 

VERNON—MODERNIZATION 379,729.11 - 379,729.11 

VINA DANKS—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 152.93 - 152.93 

VINA DANKS—MODERNIZATION 548,993.91 273,755.00 822,748.91 

VINA DANKS—SEISMIC RETROFIT 456,986.14 408,895.35 865,881.49 

VINEYARD—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 1,446.93 - 1,446.93 

VINEYARD—MODERNIZATION 258,386.22 - 258,386.22 



Project Activity

PROJECT EXPENDITURES-TO-DATE ENCUMBERED TOTAL

VISTA GRANDE—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 703.31 - 703.31 

VISTA GRANDE—MODERNIZATION 362,332.02 17,479.27 379,811.29 

WILTSEY—CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 2,337.32 - 2,337.32 

WILTSEY—HEALTH AND LEARNING CENTER 524,454.74 752,294.76 1,276,749.50 

WILTSEY—MODERNIZATION 203,704.51 - 203,704.51 

WILTSEY—SEISMIC RETROFIT 1,763,903.51 192,253.10 1,956,156.61 

GRAND TOTAL 54,391,161.88 8,349,305.83 62,740,467.71 



Expenditures and Encumbrances
by Category

INCEPTION-TO-DATE
CATEGORY EXPENDITURES ENCUMBERED TOTAL

ARCHITECTURAL SVCS 4,639,549.20 829,535.85 5,469,085.05 

BLDG/IMPROVE CONSTRUCTION 31,932,141.21 5,497,629.10 37,429,770.31 

CDE PLAN CHECK FEES 1,380.47 - 1,380.47 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 5,950,764.40 1,613,936.25 7,564,700.65 

CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 268.88 - 268.88 

DSA PLAN CHECK FEES 650,539.99 - 650,539.99 

ENGINEERING SVCS 18,603.19 - 18,603.19 

INSPECTION SVCS 694,816.18 28,901.00 723,717.18 

OTHER COSTS-BLDGS & IMPROVMTS 136,388.82 - 136,388.82 

OTHER INSURANCE 485,752.00 - 485,752.00 

OTHER INVENTORY ITEMS 31,428.90 - 31,428.90 

OTHER SUPPLIES 29,090.00 1,724.38 30,814.38 

OTHER SVCS/OPERATING EXP 685,479.64 27,834.96 713,314.60 

REPAIRS/SERVICE-VENDOR 2,684.54 - 2,684.54 

SITE CONSTRUCTION 8,407,327.23 288,452.28 8,695,779.51 

SOIL TESTING 700,112.23 61,292.01 761,404.24 

SURVEYS OR SITE PURCH OR IMPR 24,710.00 - 24,710.00 

WATER SERVICES 125.00 - 125.00 

GRAND TOTAL 54,391,161.88 8,349,305.83 62,740,467.71 



ARCHITECTURAL SVCS, 
8.717%

BLDG/IMPROVE CONSTRUCTION, 
59.658%

CDE PLAN CHECK FEES, 0.002%

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT, 
12.057%

CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES, 0.000%

DSA PLAN CHECK FEES, 1.037%

ENGINEERING SVCS, 0.030%

INSPECTION SVCS, 1.154%

OTHER COSTS-BLDGS & IMPROVMTS, 
0.217%

OTHER INSURANCE, 0.774%

OTHER INVENTORY ITEMS, 0.050%

OTHER SUPPLIES, 0.049%

OTHER SVCS/OPERATING EXP, 
1.137%

REPAIRS/SERVICE-VENDOR, 0.004%

SITE CONSTRUCTION, 13.860%

SOIL TESTING, 1.214%

SURVEYS OR SITE 
PURCH OR IMPR, 

0.039%

WATER SERVICES, 0.000%

EXPENDITURES-TO-DATE



ARCHITECTURAL SVCS, 9.935%

BLDG/IMPROVE CONSTRUCTION, 
65.845%

CDE PLAN CHECK FEES, 0.000%

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT, 
19.330%

CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES, 0.000%

DSA PLAN CHECK FEES, 0.000%

ENGINEERING SVCS, 0.000%

INSPECTION SVCS, 0.346%

OTHER COSTS-BLDGS & IMPROVMTS, 
0.000%

OTHER INSURANCE, 0.000%

OTHER INVENTORY ITEMS, 0.000%

OTHER SUPPLIES, 
0.021%

OTHER SVCS/OPERATING EXP, 
0.333%

REPAIRS/SERVICE-VENDOR, 0.000%

SITE CONSTRUCTION, 3.455% SOIL TESTING, 0.734%

SURVEYS OR SITE PURCH OR IMPR, 
0.000%

WATER SERVICES, 0.000%

ENCUMBERED



ARCHITECTURAL SVCS, 
8.530%

BLDG/IMPROVE CONSTRUCTION, 
58.708%

CDE PLAN CHECK FEES, 0.003%

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT, 
10.941%

CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES, 0.000%

DSA PLAN CHECK FEES, 1.196%
ENGINEERING SVCS, 0.034%

INSPECTION SVCS, 1.277%

OTHER COSTS-BLDGS & IMPROVMTS, 
0.251%

OTHER INSURANCE, 0.893%

OTHER INVENTORY ITEMS, 0.058%

OTHER SUPPLIES, 0.053%

OTHER SVCS/OPERATING EXP, 
1.260%

REPAIRS/SERVICE-VENDOR, 0.005%

SITE CONSTRUCTION, 15.457%

SOIL TESTING, 1.287%

SURVEYS OR SITE 
PURCH OR IMPR, 

0.045% WATER SERVICES, 0.000%

TOTAL ACTIVITY-TO-DATE



 -

 5,000,000.00

 10,000,000.00

 15,000,000.00

 20,000,000.00

 25,000,000.00

 30,000,000.00

 35,000,000.00

 40,000,000.00

EXPENDITURES-TO-DATE
vs

PROJECTED TOTAL PROJECT COST

EXPENDITURES-TO-DATE TOTAL





MEASURE “K”
CITIZENS’ BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE (CBOC)

Ontario-Montclair School District

Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee
Annual Report



Term Expiration:
Current Third TermMembers

Ontario-Montclair School District
Ontario, California

March 1, 2021
MEASURE “K” CITIZENS’ BOND 

OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

Cindi Aguirre (Taxpayers Associate Member) Apr 2021     Apr 2023
Bertha Diaz (Parent Member) Apr 2021     Apr 2023
Judith Jasper (Senior Citizen’s Organization Member) Apr 2020     Apr 2024
Crisol Mena (Parent Active in a PTA Member) Apr 2021     Apr 2023
Michael Milhiser (At-Large Member) Apr 2021     Apr 2023
Christine Pangelinan (At-Large Member) Apr 2020     Apr 2024
Sergio Sahagun (Community Business Owner Member) Apr 2020     Apr 2022

2020-21 ANNUAL REPORT
Background:  Education Code Section 15280 requires that the Committee issue “regular reports on 
the results of its activities,” and that a report shall be issued at least once per year. There is no 
established or mandated form, or other required content, for an annual report.

1. Activities of the Committee.

On January 19, 2017, the Board approve Adoption of Resolution 2016-17-18, establishing an 
Independent Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee (“CBOC”) and Approving OMSD Independent 
Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee Bylaws for Measure K.  In accordance with the CBOC 
Bylaws, the committee is to consist of a minimum of seven (7) members.  The applications were 
received and screened to determine the recommended committee membership. 

The CBOC convened on March 1, 2021.  No business was conducted without a quorum. Agendas 
and Meeting Minutes, plus exhibits provided to the members, are posted on the District’s 
website.



2020-21 Annual Report

Findings of the Committee.

Since establishing the CBOC its members have scheduled meetings on a regular basis in 
compliance with State law and the School District’s Board Policy BP 7214 and Administrative 
Regulation AR 7214.

The CBOC has received reports, updates, and information on the expenditure of the bond funds, 
and reviewed the expenditures made on projects authorized under the bond measure.

Bond funds have been expended on the identified projects as authorized by the bond measure.

No bond measure funds have been spent on teacher/administrator salaries or other school 
operating expenses.

The annual financial and performance audits for the year ending June 30, 2020, prepared by the 
auditing firm of EideBailly, CPAs & Business Advisors, was provided to CBOC members on 
February 4, 2021 and at the CBOC annual meeting held on March 1, 2021.

The CBOC has received all necessary and requested technical and administrative assistance from 
the School District.

The CBOC’s Internet website is operational and includes all required documentation and 
information.

The CBOC received information on the District’s efforts to maximize the use of Measure ‘K’ 
revenues by implementing cost-saving measures, including competitive bidding, negotiating 
professional services fees for architectural design and construction management services, reuse 
of plans, incorporating cost efficient/energy conservation measures, and pursuing supplemental 
funding, including Prop 39 HVAC replacement funding and AB 300 seismic mitigation funding.

The District is compliant with the requirements of Article XIIIA 1(b)(3) of the California 
Constitution and Section 15278 of the Education Code governing the establishment of a CBOC.

2. Summary of Project Revenues and Expenditures as of June 30, 2018.

Bond authorization: $150,000,000.  Series A bonds: $35,000,000. Series B bonds: $35,000,000. 
Subsequent bond issues: None.

On March 17, 2017, Series A bonds were issued for the bond authorization totaling $35,000,000. 

On March 20, 2019, Series B bonds were issued for the bond authorization totaling $45,000,000. 

As reported in the Audit Report, project expenditures as of June 30, 2019 were $12,637,217.  The 
Fund ending balance was $30,799,317.  As of June 30, 2019, the Building Fund (“Measure K”) 
indicates commitments with respect to unfinished projects totaling $42,654,007.

AB 300 Seismic Mitigation funding received: $5,426,802.66
Prop 39 Energy savings funding received: $5,790,255.00



2020-21 Annual Report

No Audit Findings or Questioned Costs were reported in the Audit Report.

The Audit Report Conclusion states the District’s expenditures were made for authorized Bond 
projects.  

Projects’ funds may be augmented by other District budgets, as appropriate. These include 
Developer Fees, Routine Restricted Maintenance Account funds, Special Reserve for Capital 
Outlay Projects, Prop 39, and funding from the State’s School Facilities Program. There were no 
adjustments to the District’s financial records as a result of the Audit Report. 

3. Recommendations/Commendations.

The CBOC recommends that the District continue its efforts to maximize the use of Measure ‘K’ 
revenues by implementing cost-saving measures and pursuing supplemental funding.  It is 
apparent to the Committee that the staff’s advanced planning, solid controls procedures, and the 
development of a strong project management team has resulted in great progress towards the 
completion of the Measure ‘K’ projects. 

Measure ‘K’ was passed in November 2016 to provide $150,000,000, in whole or in part, funds 
for the renovation/repair of aging classrooms, plumbing, gas lines, asbestos/lead paint abatement, 
code compliance, school security, fire safety, increase water conservation/energy efficiency, 
improve technology/computer/science labs, construct, acquire/retrofit school facilities, 
sites/equipment, including physical education facilities, gyms, lockers, bleachers, multipurpose 
rooms used for after-school programs, assemblies, sports, performing arts and serving meals, 
construct, upgrade, reconfigure parking lots and drop off/pick up zones, and temporary housing 
of dislocated District activities caused by bond projects.

On behalf of the members of the Measure ‘K’ Citizens’ Oversight Committee (CBOC), I submit 
this 2020-21 Annual Report to the taxpayers and residents of the Ontario-Montclair School 
District.  The CBOC wishes to thank District staff and the members of the Governing Board who 
have worked with us to execute our mission of monitoring and overseeing Measure ‘K’ bond 
expenditures. 

At our March 1, 2021 meeting, the CBOC accepted, reviewed and approved this report.

Respectfully submitted,

Crisol Mena
Chair

on behalf of the

Measure ‘K’ Citizens’ Bond Oversight 
Committee, Ontario-Montclair School District

Cindi Aguirre


